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in other parts of the county there are seven graded schools, in all of which
some of the high school branches are taught.

Smithfield Hams

ARE THE FINEST IN THE WORLD

IF YOU WANT THE GENUINE HOME CURED WRITE TO
C. F. DAY

Smithfield, VA.

Every Ham Guaranteed

"BUY THE BEST"

IF YOU cannot obtain our Hams and other cuts of meats of your grocer write us
and we will see that you are supplied

P. D. Gwaltney, Jr., & Co.

Smithfield, VA.

Banking Service that Meets Every Requirement

Capital Stock,.............. $100,000

Resources,........... $500,000

THIS BANK has achieved a reputation for constantly exerting every effort to
meet the requirements of its depositors, irrespective of the extent of their
deposits. Business men, professional men, wage-earners--persons in every
walk of life—are invited to become its customers.

THE BANK OF SMITHFIELD

SMITHFIELD, VA.

ORGANIZED 1869

The Farmers Bank of Nansemond

SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

With ample resources, invites your account and offers superior service and
unexcelled facilities. Interest paid on savings accounts.

WHEN IN NEED OF PEANUTS

WRITE TO THE

United States & Smithfield

Peanut Companies

Wholesale Dealers and Cleaners, with factories in Smithfield and Norfolk, Va.
The finest grade of Hand-Picked Virginias, and lower grades. No. 1 and No. 2
Virginia Shelled, and No.1 and No. 2 Spanish Shelled.

BLANCHED PEANUTS and PEANUT BUTTER
WRITE FOR SAMPLES AND PRICES
ADDRESS EITHER

NORFOLK, VA. or SMITHFIELD, VA.

[This "book™ was transcribed by Mark A. Jordan, great great great
grandnephew of Col. E. M. Morrison, author].

Go Back From
Wengt Thou Cane
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setting the vessel on fire and blowing her up.

In 1864 the Fifteenth Massachusetts Infantry landed at Burwells Bay and
proceeded a short distanced towards Smithfield and were me by a small
Confederate force, and after considerable firing from long range retired to their
vessel without any casualties on either side, so far as is known.

These constitute all the encounters of hostile troops in this county, but the
Federal cavalry raided through the county and armed boats came to Smithfield
frequently; but two things, happily, prevented them from remaining long in the
county and in Smithfield, namely; The presence of a considerable body of
signal corps men and scouts, whose whereabouts were uncertain, and the
burning of the two bridges at Smithfield, making of it a "cul de sac" which they
dare not enter to remain long.

Spanish-American War: There was no organized force from this county which
participated in this struggle of short duration, and which was over before many
citizens could enlist; and there was moreover, in the beginning of the trouble,
much diversity of opinion as to the justice or the feasibility of making up a war
upon the issues involved. However, a few of the individuals in the county
joined various commands. Among those who did service in this "late
unpleasantness with Spain" were: A. S. Johnson, who was lieutenant in the
Fourth U. S. Volunteer Infantry (Immunes), George E. Morrison, a member of
Company G, Sixth U. S. Cavalry, which took part in the battle at San Juan,
Santiago; J. E. Tucker, O. M. Johnson, Robt. Drewry, D. T. Crowley and John I
Clarke, all of the latter being members of the Fourth Virginia Volunteer
Infantry.

Religious History and Churches.

That many of the early settlers of Virginia were pious "folk"” and deeply imbued
with the missionary spirit, there is little doubt, for the very instructions of the
London Company which Captain John Smith brought with him, contained large
provision for the maintenance of religion among the people and for the
conversion of the savages.

The Episcopal Church commenced with the settlement at Jamestown, and
although it had many difficulties with which to contend, viz.: the untried
experiment of the colonization of a new country; which demanded the greater
part of the time of the colonists to gain a home and subsistence and protection
from surrounding savages; the incubus of the moral degeneracy of the mother
church in England; the scarcity of ministers, whose supervision and control was
lodged in the hands of a Church dignitary, the Bishop of England, three
thousand miles away. These, and other difficulties, greatly hampered the
Church in the colony, yet its early ministers and many pious laity found time,
amid the unusual and new conditions of their lives, to teach the catechism, and
other religious instructions, to the children and servants; and it certainly
speaks well for the religious principles of those men, early pioneers of
American civilization, the readiness, nay eagerness, with which they undertook
and did build that long series of old churches, ten or twelve miles apart, from
the lower part of Norfolk county to and beyond the Appomattox River, a
monument to their piety, and to the wisdom and forethought of the London
Company and the Virginia House of Burgesses.

Having in mind these facts, can we wonder at the progress this country has

mhtml:file://F:\Holliman History\History, Isle of Wight County (Virginia).mht 5/21/2009





image2.jpeg
History, Isle of Wight County (Virginia) Page 27 of 32

made and the many blessings that have been showered upon us, when our
very foundation was laid on the Word and teachings of the Almighty?

Of all these old churches, many built originally of logs or lumber, and a few
built of brick, with a few exceptions here and there, all have gone.

Of those early colonial churches none have remained in a better state of
preservation, and presents to the beholder a grander or more antique
appearance than the "Old Brick Church,” in this county.

Its site is just where wisdom and common sense would have placed it; five
miles from the river settlements, five miles from a church in Nansemond; five
miles from two wide and deep streams, which would have cut it off from a
church in the Upper Parish; on the main road leading from the settlement of
Lawns Creek to those in Upper Norfolk.

The building of this church was begun in 1632 by Joseph Bridger, father of
Colonel Joseph Bridger, one of the King's Council for the Colony of Virginia,
who died in 1682, was buried on his farm, "White Marsh," about three miles
from the church and his grave marked by a marble slab which has been
removed and deposited in the church.

This old structure is in a remarkably good site of preservation and has stood
well against the "corroding tooth of time,” on account of the excellency of
materials and the fidelity with which it was built, and the good fortunes of
having had, at all times, some sort of a roof covering it, it being re-shingled
about 1737, and again about 1838, with good cypress shingles both times.

Built of bricks, made of clay of the very best quality, found in its immediate
vicinity, and put together with a mortar made from well burnt oyster sheli lime
and building sand, both of which can be found near by in great quantities, the
sand being taken from the base of the hill on which it rests, the mortar
becoming almost as hard as flint, preventing the displacement of a brick
without tearing away a part of those to which it is attached, baffling the
incursions of the would-be despoiler, has assisted greatly in its preservation.

So far as our knowledge extends this is the oldest house of worship now
standing on American soil encased by its original walls. The cathedral at St.
Augustine, Florida, is the oldest church, but that has been destroyed by fire
several times, but each time has been rebuilt. The "Old Brick Church" is the
oldest church of the Protestant faith standing in America.

Tarleton's British troopers rested beneath the shade of the venerable oaks,
which surround it; the Virginia militia, in the war of 1812 bivouacked around it,
as also did the Confederate soldiers of 1861. Many political speeches and
barbecues have transpired in the grove adjoining, whose shade has furnished
the trysting place, for more than two centuries, of lovers.

The church was used but little from the outbreak of the Revolution to some
time in 1830's when it was almost completely abandoned a prey to the
elements. In spite of this fact the grand old walls stood a monument to the
purpose for which it was built and to the builders. In June, 1887, the Reverend
David Barr, rector of the church in Smithfield, passing the old church from his
attendance upon a convocation in "Old St. John's" in Nansemond, another of
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the structures of the colonial period, discovered that, by a recent storm, what
remained of the old roof had been shaken from its holdings and had fallen in or
was tottering. He immediately undertook its restoration, and though fraught
with difficulties of the most serious character,, chiefly the lack of funds, he
begun the work, with great energy. Before he had completed his work,
however, he moved to Washington, D. C., and the duty of its completion
devolved upon his successor, the Rev. F. G. Scott, and the vestry of the church
in Smithfield, notably among whom was Mr. R. S. Thomas, who, for his
prolonged and assiduous efforts for the restoration of the "Old Church"
deserves especial mention.

All sorts and conditions of people subscribed to the funds used in the
restoration. In some cases the workmen gave their labor, and by subscriptions
from the people of nineteen States, of which a record is kept in the Vestry Book
of Christ church in Smithfield.

It stands today beautiful within and without, and filled with memorials to those
connected with its own history and that of the colony. Its stained glass chancel
window, eighteen feet by twelve, made in London, divided into twelve sections,
each dedicated to some well known character, prominent in Church or State, is
a most striking piece of art. All of the windows are of stained glass, memorials
to those connected with its history, of beautiful design. Its carved altar and
exquisite reading desk; its wine glass pulpit with its broad steps and high
sounding board; its beautiful font, of the purest Carara marble, made in
England, are especially attractive. The pews are of the original style, made of
native heart pine. All these things impress the worshipper with a deep sense of
solemnity when worshipping the "God of our Fathers," where they, themselves,
some hundred years ago, worshipped; and to the transient visitor, it cannot fail
to be interesting, both on account of its own intrinsic beauty and design and
the historical memories of other and ancient days in the life of our country it
brings to his recollection.

It is pertinent to say here that this church is accessible from Smithfield by
carriage and can be seen by visitors at all times.

There is one other church of more than ordinary interest in this country, it
being the mother of the churches of the Baptist denomination in this section,
"Mill Swamp.”

It is a well established fact that the Baptists established a place of worship
known as Burleigh church somewhere in the vicinity of Mill Swamp, perhaps on
the very site on which is located the present church, sixty years before it had
an existence, for, at the solicitation of Baptist brethren in Isle of Wight, made
to their brethren in London, the Rev. Robt. Wooden, in 1714, did reach this
county and establish the old church above referred to. In January, 1727,
Caspar Mints and Richard Jones came over from England, settled near the
church, and the latter was its pastor for over thirty years, then following
twenty years of unrecorded history, and after a career of about forty-three
years became extinct and was lost to history. In 1772, the Rev. John
Meglamore, from Raccoon Swamp, now Antioch church, Sussex county,
preached and baptized a number of people; these people, on July 2nd, 1774,
met near the site of the present church and organized themselves into a
Baptist church, with David Barrow as pastor, under his name. For seventeen
years this church was called "The Church in Isle of Wight," or "David Barrow's
Church." In 1791 it assumed its present name. This old church sent out

mhtml:file://F:\Holliman History\History, Isle of Wight County (Virginia).mht 5/21/2009





image4.jpeg
History, Isle of Wight County (Virginia) Page 29 of 32

colonies at a later period to Smithfield, Moore's Swamp, Tucker Swamp and
Bethesda. The first meetinghouse of this church was built in 1832 and repaired
and remodelled in 1895. It is now a brick structure with a seating capacity of
several hundred. It has a large congregation and is in a flourishing condition.
The yearly protracted meetings or revivals at this old church are of special
note. While the same custom prevails in other churches in this vicinity, yet, on
account of the length of time they have been held at Mill Swamp, the
hospitality of its members and the magnificent spreads put upon the tables for
the sustenance of the attendants upon these meetings, have made them,
probably, more talked of at this church than at any other one.

There were two other colonial churches in this county, of the Episcopal faith,
being the Bay church, about five miles from Smithfield on Burwell's Bay,
(originally Worrosquoyacke Bay), on the farm now owned by Dr. W. D. Turner.
It was erected in 1750 and after the Revolution; like many of the old churches,
it was abandoned. About 1810 the estate upon which it was located came into
the hands of those who had no reverence for it as a church, and it was pulled
down and a kitchen built of the bricks, and the backs of the pews were used to
make partitions in a barn. The latter was struck by lightning and destroyed, the
Negroes always declared, by act of God. The bell was exchanged in Richmond
for a brandy still.

The other church, called Isle of Wight chapel, was located about eighteen miles
northwest of Smithfield and was erected about 1750. About 1820 it was burnt
down. The site afterwards came into possession of the O'Kellyites or Christians,
and is now Antioch.

The Quakers had a strong following in Isle Of Wight County at an early date.
They had a large meetinghouse in what was then and is now known as "Leevy
Neck."

The leading men of the county were not disposed to be harsh in carrying out
the laws of non-conformity against the Quakers, and although a few of them
were fined, they generally met when and where they wished, and in 1699, their
meeting houses were regularly licensed and the only complaint they had was
that they were taxed to support the Established Church.

There is no Quaker church in this county at the present time, but there is one
not many miles from the line in the county of Southampton, once a part of this
county.

There are other churches in the county with an interesting history, but space
will not admit of discussion as to them here. All of the churches in this county
are hereunder named.

Episcopal: "Old Brick Church" and Christ church, at Smithfield.

Baptist: Mill Swamp, Smithfield, Windsor, Colosse, Beaver Dam, Central Hill,
Whitehead's Grove, and Battery Park.

Methodist: Benn's Smithfield, Uzzells, Bethel, Bethany, Windsor (Shiloh), and
Woodland.

Christian: Antioch ("On site of old "Isle of Wight chapel,” hereinabove referred
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to), Windsor, Mt. Carmel and Courthouse.

There are several colored churches of the Baptist, Methodist and Christian
denomination scattered throughout the county.

Schools.

IN EARLY colonial times some little effort was made, by donations of pious
individuals, to maintain a few free schools, separate and apart from the
parochial schools which the ministers of the Established Church were required
to teach or have taught in the parishes.

At a meeting of Thomas Bennett's men, had the 7th of February 1625, we find
that Benjamin Sims, who came over in =----=------------ ship, was present. This
man was a survivor of the Indian massacre and lived in Isle of Wight, near the
"Rocks." He afterwards moved to Elizabeth City County and, by his will, in
1634, provided for the first free school in America. Funds from this donation
are still used in the conduct of the high school in Hampton, Virginia.

In 1635 Captain John Moon, in his will, left to the overseer of the poor money
and cattle for the clothing and schooling of poor children.

In 1668 Henry King's will reads: "I give one hundred acres of land lieing and
being next adjacent to Mr. England, to this Parish where I now live towards the
maintenance of a free school."

There is a small creek in the vicinity of "Ballace Marsh" called King's Creek and
not far from it a farm called King's. Probably this Henry King lived in this
section.

In 1719 Rev. Thomas Bailey in a letter to the Bishop of London says: "There
are four hundred families in my parish and four small free schools, taught by a
Mr. Hunt, a Mr. Irons, a Mr. Gills and a Mr. Reynolds." Where these schools
were located no one will ever know.

In 1753 Mrs. Elizabeth Smith, the wife of Arthur Smith, who had recently had
incorporated the town of Smithfield, purchased a lot and had built thereon a
house twenty-eight feet by sixteen feet, in which should be taught six poor
orphan children; the boys for three years and the girls for two years. The
master was to receive twenty shillings and had the privilege of taking as many
additional pupils as he might deem necessary.

This good lady died in 1774 and by her will gave "one hundred and twenty
pounds to the school for the teaching of six more indigent children." Colonel
Byrd says she was a lady who had "copied Solomon's complete housewife
exactly."

This was the nucleus of a free school and remained as such for about twenty
years when it became a private school at which many men of an elder
generation of Smithfield were prepared for college and university education.

This building was conveyed to the Masonic fraternity in 1788 and had been in
continual use as a Masonic Lodge for one hundred and eighteen years, the next
oldest building for that purpose in Virginia, the Lodge in Richmond, having
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been, three years prior to this, dedicated.

These feeble efforts at public or free schools seem paltry, but there were good
private schools in those days, nor were the people indifferent to the education
of their children, for in almost all the old wills the testators made some
provision or left some directions for their education.

The usual plan adopted was for some rich or well-to-do man to build a
schoolhouse, employ a teacher for the education of is own children and to
invite his neighbors to send their children and to help defray the expenses.

These early teachers, male and female, were generally from the Northern
States, as the Southern youth, after the completion of their college education
invariably rushed into the professions of law, medicine or politics; but these
educators, from a section that we afterwards, for a time, learned to hate, were
almost universally well trained, well prepared, conscientious and efficient
teachers, and every man of them took the Southern view of the political
situation of 1861 and remained with us during the war -- a war fated with
many direful results to this Southland, but none more disastrous than the
complete annihilation of every school.

Immediately after the war, although its horrid devastation required every effort
of the people to obtain a bare subsistence, efforts were made in many places
to maintain private schools, the teachers being often partly paid in products of
the farm; when, happily, for the moral good of the community and the
salvation of the rising generation from almost complete ignorance, in 1870 the
Public School System was adopted; which, at first, met with considerable
opposition, largely on account of the necessity of providing schools for the
Negroes; but thanks to the inherent goodness of the people, a broader
philanthropy prevailed and that feeling has happily perished.

From the date of its adoption to the present there have been but three County
Superintendents of Schools, E. M. Morrison, for twelve years; Wm. S. Holland,
for four years, and Dr. Gavin Rawles, the present incumbent.

In May 1871, the people of the county showed their approval of the new public
school system by voting to levy a special capitation tax of fifty cents for the
maintenance of their free schools.

The intellectual status of its corps of teachers has gradually improved until it
stands equal to that of any county of the State, which felicitous result has been
gained by free scholarship in colleges and the training at normal schools.

The county is divided into three school districts, which correspond to and bear
the same name as the three Magisterial Districts, viz.: Newport, Hardy and
Windsor; with the town of Smithfield as a separate district.

The school population, white and colored, is four thousand three hundred and
ninety-six; number schools, seventy. The amount expended annually for
teachers' wages is fourteen thousand dollars. The length of the school! term
varies. In Smithfield it is nine months, in Windsor District it is eight months,
and in Newport and Hardy Districts it is seven months.

Smithfield, Windsor and Isle of Wight courthouse have each a high school, and
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